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Almodington
Oriole vicinity
private

"Almodington" stands out as one of the most elaborate plantation houses
erected in Somerset County during the mid eighteenth century. Four brick
walls exhibit the finest in masonry craftsmanship with a carefully executed
glazed header checkerboard pattern on the south side and gauged brick jack
arches over the first and second floor windows. The window and door openings
on the north side are topped by an unusual segmental arch design of alternating
glazed rollocks and unglazed soldier bricks. The plastered cove cornices that
finish the front and rear eaves are only found on a handful of contemporary
houses. Inside, the first floor was originally fitted with the best carpentry
available at the time. Due to the high quality of design and execution, éhe
west parlor raised paneling was removed from the house and inserted in the
Metropolitain Museum of Art as a backdrop for mid eighteenth-century furniture.
A pair of shell carved cupboards flanked a raised panel hearth wall, and floor
to ceiling raised paneling covered the other three walls. Even though the par-
lor woodwork was removed, the stair hall and east room survive with mid eight-
eenth~century finishes. A series of turned balusters and turned «as@F posts
support a molded and ramped handrail. The elaborate railing encircles the
stairwell on the second floor. A raised panel partition and raised panel win-
dow reveals distinguish the east room. The Federal style mantel wa§ evidently
added at a later date. Attached to the back of the house is a two-story, one-

room plan Flemish bond wing apparently added around 1790-1798.

The original 1000-acre tract of "Almodington," known to the Indians as
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"Portoback," was officially surveyed for John Elzey on November 10, 1663.
Elzey, however, was living in the area as early as 1661 for he was named one
of the three commissioners to grant warrants for land and to administer the
oath of allegiance to the first settlers. Elzey did not live long after his
arrival for it was recorded in Somerset Court that John Elzey died at Manokin
and was buried on his plantation in 1664. "Almodington" passed to John Elzey's
two sons, Arnold and John, Jr., but John, Jr. was dead by 1667, so Arnold be-
came the sole owner. Arnold Elzey's plantation was platted on June 8, 1720,
as a result of judicial proceedings concerning the property. As drawn, the
"Almodington'" tract encompassed 1083 acres and was bordered by the Manokin
iver on the south, Goose Creek on the east and St. Peter's Creek to the west.
Arnold Elzey lived until 1733, and he bequeathed to his daughters, Sarah and
Elizabeth, the land south of his dwelling house on the Manokin (EB 9/153).

His son, John Elzey received everything else.

Despite the established tradition that the "Almodington'" house was erected
by Arnold Elzey, architectural evidence suggests that Arnold's son, John, fin-
anced the construction during the decades following his father's death in 1733.
It is entirely likely that John built his ambitious two-story brick house on
the site of his father's dwelling, the location of which is designated on the

1720 plat.

John Elzey died in 1777, and his Manokin River plantation passed to his
son, Arnold. 0ddly, Arnold Elzey died the same year as his father, and Arnold's
heirs granted "Almodington" to his brother, William, with the understanding

that the estate was for William's use, but that he did not have the right to




S5-4¢

sell any part of the plantation (C/316). The 1783 tax assessment listed the
"Almodington" plantation under Arnold Elzey's name in spite of his former
death. Located on the property was, "| Brick Dwelling House, two stories
high, midling good repair, kitchen barns and improvements, sorry." Contain-

ing 1242 acres and nineteen slaves, "Almodington" was assessed at £3513.

Due to the subsequent death of William, the plantation was inherited by
Sarah Elzey Jones, wife of Major William Jones, who was assessed for the 1200-
acre plantation in 1798. The description suggests apparent changes to the

house since 1783.

] Dwelling House 52 by 22 feet brick two story high 6 windows
5 feet 6 inches long 3 feet wide, | window 5 feet 8 inches
long 2 feet 4 inches wide, 7 windows 5 feet 6 inches long

3 feet wide, ! window 6 feet long 2 feet 4 inches wide, add-
ition to Dwelling House 26 by 20 feet brick two story 5
windows 5 feet 8 inches long 2 feet 4 inches wide, 6 windows
4 feet 10 inches long 2 feet 4 inches wide, 2 windows 2 feet
long 22 inches wide, | Cook House 24 by 22 feet wood, two
story, 4 windows 4 feet 10 inches long 2 feet 4 inches wide,
4 windows 3 feet 8 inches long 2 feet 4 inches wide, ! window
2 feet long 22 inches wide, Colonade (sic) 25 by 12, 4 windows
4 feet square, | Milk House 12 feet square, | Lumber House,
22 by 20, | Stable 28 by 24, 1 Carriage House 20 by 16 feet,
] Necessary 8 feet square.

Architectural evidence along with the assessment descriptions convincingly
suggest the rear two-story ell addition was added between 1783 and 1798, and
the colonnade was erected at the same time between the house and the detached
two—-story, frame kitchen. Also included on the plantation were three additional
houses (evidently for overseers or tenant farmers); one granary; four barns;
two large corn houses (one measuring 40 by 10); and three quarters, built with

larger than normal dimensions (averaging 30 by 20), which points to a multiple
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family or dormitory arrangement for William Jones' eighty slaves.

Before his death Major William Jones partitioned his vast holdings between
three principal heirs (GH 3/179). To Sally E. Jones (wife of John C. Wilson, Jr.
of Westover Plantation) he bequeathed his dwelling plantation; for Arnold Elzey
Jones he confirmed inheritance of property that Arnold had evidently occupied
since 1818 (see Elmwood, S-41); and finally to Elizabeth A.W. Jones Waters he

left a third tract, later known as "Homewood'" (S-39).

As the wife of John C. Wilson, Jr. of Westover Plantation, Sally E. Jones
Wilson sold "Almodington" to her step-sister, Margaret Nichols, who sold it
six years later to Isaac Atkinson (LW 2/414). With the death of Anne W. Jones
at Elmwood, Isaac Atkinson purchased original "Almodington" acreage from the

Elmwood estate trustee, Levin L. Waters (BFL 1/607).

Levin L. Waters was appointed trustee sixteen years later when he dissolved
the estate of Isaac S. Atkinson. On December 17, 1895, Waters sold Almodington
to Elizabeth and Lena Woolford, who owned the property for close to nine years.
Lois Aldrich and others purchased the farm from Elizabeth E. Woolford (OTB 39/470),
and the Aldrichs retained possession of the farm for the next quarter century.
Following the Aldrichs were several owners until John and Mary Honnecker pur-
chased 222 acres and the house in April of 1952 (BLB 157/135). The Honneckers
added the modern kitchen wing. The current owners bought the farm in March of

1980 (320/782).
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Maryland Historical Trust
_State Historic Sites Inventory Form

DOE yes no

1. Name

{indicate preferred name)

historic A7MODINGTON

and/or common

2. Location

street & number nd of rv lane that intersacts Leowst Point Road —__ not for publication

city, town Criola _3_ vicinity of congressional district First
state Haryland county Somerset
3. Classification
Category Ownership Status Present Use
—— district: _ public _*-_occupied ____agriculture ____ museum
= building(s) “ private __ unoccupied ____ commercial — park
— structure ___both ___work in progress ___ educational <+ private residence
—__ site Public Acquisition Accessible ___ entertainment ___religious
“~ _ object ___in process _%_yes: restricted ____government ____scientific
being considered — yes: unrestricted __industrial ___ transportation
_ not applicable ___no ____ military —__other:

4. Owner Of Praperty (give names and mailing addresses of all owners)

name Freedow: and liorma Answorth

street & number Laclt:ford telephone no.:

city, town Frincess Anne state and zip code Hd. ZI8E3

5. Location of Legal Description

courthouse, registry of deeds, etc. Sonerset Co. Clark of Court liber -2C
street & number -omerset County Courthouse folio el

city, town Princess Anne state 1ic. 21853

6. Representation in Existing nmistorical surveys

title iiarylond Historical Sitees Inventory

_date 1557 __ _federal _Z state ___ county ____local

¥zryland Historical Trust

Jepository for survey records

city, town %A“ napoiis




7. Description Survey No. ¢_.¢

Condition Check one Check one

_— excellent ____deteriorated unaltered b

= good —___ruins X altered —_ moved date of move
— tair — unexposed

Prepare both a summary paragraph and a general description of the resource and its
various elements as it exists today.

The two—story center hall, single-nole brick dwelling is supported by a
Flemish bond brick foundation narked by a simple watertable. The brick walls are
covered By a steeply nitched wood shinzle roof finished with wnlastered cove cornices
and flush gzablie ends. Attached to the back of the house is a late eighteenth-century
ell addition, and extending eastward is a 2id twentieth-century brick service wing.
Accompanying the house is a frame outbuilding, a garage and z brick caretaker's hous
The syurietrical iyo-story, five-bay facade is hichligchted by carefully crafted
clazed header checkerboard patten. Tividine the two floors is a three-course Selicourse
The cenfer entrance is frawzed by classical surround consisting of Ionic pilasters,
a cushion frieze, and a modillioned cornice. Flankins the door onening are two sixtaen
0 i w78 that are towped by flared brick jack arches of sauged brick.
.nts Setween the arch brick igs extremely thin. The first floor
three-panel shutte i i the second floor are five evenly
a

d brick jack arches. The brichs

ndow open: ings u 1 th nlain rad brick in =2n efiort to

One iron tie rod with a star-shaped seat is located betwyeen the
from the wvest.

Aside from two three-course beltcourse that mark the second and attic flcor level
the waet zahle end ie a nlain Flepish bond brick wall with ar interior end brick chivn
with a corbelled cap. The attic level Leltcourse ends before reaching the front and

wallg, and it is finished with a2 concave curve that is repeated with the cove

The north {(back) wall of the house is partially covered by the two-story rear
e north wall of the main block has an asyrmetrical fenestration with a central
door and two sixzteen over sixteen sash to the right of the doerway. ‘he window and
enings are topped by segumental arches of alternating glazed rollacks and
d so Ldler bricks. A mid-level sixteen over twelve sash window interrupts the
e an llgﬂts the i

1
e

5]

2ir lan le,. The two second floor twelve over twelve s

1 r 1 3 1 1. n
hes fo alternatine glazed roiloczcks.
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ock the addition eave follows

by two bays deeu. The nine over n £
gash on the second = DT crenta

windows have three-panel shu ters. As in the
the coved cornice.

(o]
O
<
)
e
D
t
o
3
L
D Fo
[#9
v}
7
4
10
2

3
)



8. Significance

Survey No.

S-4q

Period Areas of Significance—Check and justify below
— prehistoric ____ archeology-prehistoric ____ community planning ____ landscape architecture____ religion
.1400-1499 ___ archeology-historic —_conservation — law — science
- 1500-1599 agriculture —__economics — literature —— sculpture
—— education — military — social/
- art ____engineering —__music humanitarian
— 1800-1899 ____ commerce —_ exploration/settiement ____ philosophy —__ theater
— 1900 —__ communications — industry — politics/government ____ transportation
—__invention — other (specify)
Specific dates Builder/Architect
check: Applicable Criteria: _ A _ B _C _ D
and/or
Applicable Exception: _ A B _C _D _E _F _G
Level of Significance: _ national _ state __ local

Prepare both a summary paragraph of significance and a general statement of history and

support.

ALlr.odington stands out as one of the most elaborate plantation houses
aractes in Somerset County during the nid eighteenth century. Its four brick wzlls
in brick craftsmanshin with a carefully executed glazed header
n on the south side and gauged brick jack arches over thas first
ncdovs. The window and door openince on the nerth side are
sepiental arch design of altermating slazed rollocks and
— o >ricze. The cove cornices vhich finish thz front and back eavecs
are cnly founé on a feu Somersat houses. Inside, the first floor was originally
fitted with the best carpentry available at the time. As a result, the most
slzborate nelinz of the west room: was rewoved from the house and installed in
i Husew: of Art'e American ving ac an lary Georgian style
r to ceiling raised paneling and 55911—carved cupboards which
ilasters or either side of the raised panel hearth. Even thouzsh
dyjoris wac reoroved irom the west room, the stair hall and sast
w:id eichteenth—cantury finighes. The turned baluster ctzir and
artition in the east roor are two of the most signifacant
roor: also has splayed and paneled window reveals. The Fecereal
igring the late eigh;eerfh or =2arly nineteenthe century.
BISTORY AND BUPPGET
“he origiral 1GCG-acre tract of "Almodington,' known to the Indians as
"Portoback," was officially surveyed for John Elzey on November 10,1663, Elzey,
owvever, vas living in the area as early as 1861 for he was namecd one of the three
covi:igsioners te crant wvarrants for land and to aduinister the oath of alleciance
to the firvrgt sett] 1 t live lonz after his initial arrived for it
orded in John Zlzey died at ianokin and was buried on
ntationg’ ton" wmassed to Jchn Elzey's two sons, Arnold
n, Jr., D € d bv 1857, so Arnoid becane the sole owner.
Zlcey's o s pl ed on June §, 1720, ag a result of Zudicial
ing conce g operty. As drawn, the "Almocdington™ tract
- ssed 1C83 re as bordered by the Hanokin River on the south, Goose
n the east and St. Peter's Creelr to the west. Arnold Eizey lived until
eathad = ig 7 ters, S lizabeth, the land south of @his
e on &) 83 ¢/153 , John Elzey received everything
Continued




9. Major Bibliographical References survey No. S Yo

10. Geographical Data

Acreage of nominated property
Quadrangie name Quadrangle scale

UTM References {o NOT complete UTM references

T "Ll W e bbb

Zone Easting Northing Zone Easting Northing
b b e b bagd Lo Dl Lo e baa

el ) Ll bt Lo b e ba el FI[JIIIIIII[LI [

el L0 L d Lol byald C N B I T R O A T

Verbal boundary description and justification

List all states and counties for properties overlapping state or county boundaries

state code county code

state code county code

11. Form Prepared By

name/title

organization date
street & number telephone
city or town state

The Maryland Historic Sites Inventory was officially created by
an Act of the Maryland Legislature to be found in the Annotated
Code of Maryland, Article 41, Section 181 KA, 1974 supplement.

The survey and inventory are being prepared for information and
record purposes only and do not constitute any infringement of
individual property rights.

return to: Maryland Historical Trust
Shaw House
21 State Circle
Annapolis, Maryland 21401
(301) 269-2438

PS-2746



Survey Number S-40
Paze

[ ]

The north ga31e end of the wing is similarly finishe
the in%erior end brick stack, and 1
The brick chimney is finishad with a corbe

A

7s along the same
s the north bay o
ered by the mid ¢

o

arn as the west
e first floor.
entieth century

upzer fioor.

The mid ftwentieth century story-and-a-halif kitchen wing was erected in Flemish
bond with a dormered second floor. A slightly shorter hyphen connects the main
house and the kitche

main house 1is divided into three rcoms; one room tec either
. The zoneling in the west roown was removed in the early

alled in the Awmerical wing of the Metropolitan tiuseum.
led paneling was crafted to resemble the original woodwork.
the other hand datec from the nid eichteenth century.
tincuisiaed by a ramped and nolded handrail that ends at
luster of four turned baiusters cerve as the =ain nevel
re balusters rise from each tread. The stringer 1is decorated
with bold S-curve brackets, and the surface below the stringer is divided by three
raised panels. The molded handrail ramps before reaching the landing vpost. The same
turned baluster handrail skirts the second floor stairwell.

floor room has a raised panel chimney breacst to
1 t

Te a has been attached. The five-part frieze and
oi riched with applied classical swags and nedaiiions. T el
il roun 0lding and a gougevor® bad molding. The ove el is
vertical raleed senelc. In addition, the window raveals are
across the back of the room is a partition of floor to ceiling
separates this room from a rear passage that connects the
and north wings. The partition has nolded chair rail that
sec vanels below from large rectangular ones above. A

is framed by a molded surround.

The second floor of the main block is divided into two bedrooms which flank
zena The wes* bedrcon, the larzer of the twe roone, aac
Vi ) ané a crossetted hearth surrounc. A nolded imante
ehelf marlks the spaca between the hearth surround and the overmantel _rrellnq
#olded chair rail extends between the chlmner breast and the two end wall closets.
e room ig aiso fitted with 2olded bacebo‘ a, and a Federzl pericd door with
fiush zanele and 2 coat of mehogany craining.
The intarior of the late eighteenth-century wing is finished with nlaster
walls, rmolded baseboards, and nmeriod mentels. The mid twentieth-century addition
was built as a modern kitchen.
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Jokn Elzey died in 1777, and his lanokin River plantation passed to his son,
Arnold. 0ddly, Arnold Zlzey died the same vear as his father, and his heirs granted
Alwodincton to his brother, Willian, with the understanding that the estate was
for Willian's use but that he did not have the rioht to sell any part of the
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Due to the subsequent death of William, the plantation was inherited by Sarah
Elzey Jones, wife of Major William Jones, who was assessed for the 1200-acre
plantation in 1798, The description suggests apparent changes to the house since
1783.

1 Dwelling House 52 by 22 feet brick two story high 6 windows

5 feet 6 inches long 3 feet wide | window 5 feet 8 inches long 2
feet 4 inches wide 7 windows 5 feet 6 inches long 3 feet wide |
widow 6 feet long 2 feet 4 inches wide, addition to Dwelling
House 26 by 20 feet brick two story 5 windows 5 feet 8 inches
long 2 feet 4 inches wide 6 windows 4 feet 10 inches long 2 feet
4 inches wide 2 windows 2 feet long 22 inches wide | cook house
24 by 22 feet wood, two story 4 windows 4 feet 10 inches long 2
feet 4 inches wide 4 windows 3 feet 8 inches long 2 feet 4 inches
wide, | window 2 feet long 22 inches wide, Colonsde 25 by 12 4
windows 4 feet square, | Milk House 12 feet square, | Lumber House
22 by 20, 1 Stable 28 by 24 feet, 1 Carriage House 20 by 16 feet,
1 Necessary 8 feet square. $2000

Architectural evidence along with the assessment descriptions convincingly suggest
the rear two-story ell addition was added between 1783 and 1798, and the colonnade
was erected at the same time between the house and the detached kitchen. Also
included on the plantation were three additional houses (evidently for overseers
or tenant farmers), one granary, four barns, two large corn houses (one measuring
40 by 10), and three quaters, built with larger than normal dimensions (averaging
30 by 20), which points to a multiple family or dormitory arrangement for William
Jones' eighty slaves.

Before his death Major William Jones partitioned his vast holdings between
three principal heirs(GH 3/179). To Sally E. Jones (wife of John C. Wilson,Jr.)
he bequeathed his dwelling plantation; for Arnold Elzey Jones he confirmed
inheritance of property that Arnold had evidently occupied since 1818 (see Elmwood,
S-41); and finally to Elizabeth A. W. Jones Waters he left a third tract, later
known as ''Homewood'"(S-39).
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As the wife of John C. Wilson, Jr. of Westover Plantation, Sally E. Jones
Wilson sold "Almodington" to her step-sister, Margaret Nichols, who sold it six
years later to Isaac Atkinson (LW 2/414). With the death of Anne W. Jones at
Elmwood, Isaac Atkinson purchased additional acreage from the estate trustee,
Levin L. Waters (BFL 1/607).

Levin L. Waters was appointed trustee sixteen years later when he dissolved
the estate of Isaac S. Atkinson. On December 17, 1895, Waters sold Almodington to
Elizabeth and Lena Woolford who owned the property for close nine years, Lois
Aldrich and others purchased the farm from Elizabeth E. Woolford (OTB 39/470), and
the Aldrichs retained ownership of the property for the next quarter century.
Following the Aldrichs were several owners until John and Mary Honnecker,
purchased 222 acres and the house in April of 1952 (BLB 157/135). The Honneckers
apparently added the modern kitchen wing. They sold it in 1967 to Wayne and Edyth
Benedict (241/76). The current owners purchased the farm in March of 1980 (320/782).
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1. state Maryland HISTORIC AMERICAN BUILDINGS SURVEY
county Somerset County INVENTORY S=40
tovnManokin R. vicinity Oriole L.

STREET NO. 2. NnameAlmodington

DATE OR PERiOD 1700 - 1740

sTyLe Colonial
ARCHITECT
BUILDER

ORIGINAL OWNER Elzey Family
ORIGINAL USE Dwelling
PRESENT OWNER

PRESENT USE Dwelling

WALL CONSTRUCTION F]l emish Bond Brick |3 FOR LIBRARY OF CONGRESS USE
NO. OF STORIES 21

4. NOTABLE FEATURES, HISTORICAL SIGNIFICANCE AND DESCRIPTION OPEN TO PUBLIC NO

This is a large brick house of the early colonial period.
It was built about 1700 and has a brick kitchen wing at
the rear which dates from 1740.

Five bays wide and two bays deep, it has a very steeply
pitched "A'" roof. The house is of Flemish bond brick and
all the headers are glazed a deep blue. Simple square pro-
truding bricks form a water table. The first floor windows
are sixteen over sixteen, the second are twelve over twelve.
A1l of the windows on the front of the house have flat arches
of rubbed brick, while those on the rear have segmented arches
of alternating bands of glazed headers and plain stretchers.
The central door of the house has a simple Georgian portico
of Ionic pilasters holding up a flat dentilled cornice. There
are no windows on the ends of the house. A three string belt
course runs around the house between the first and second
story level and on the ends between the second story and gable
level, A large sixteen over twelve stair hall window cuts
through the belt course on the rear of the house.

The kitchen wing of 1740 is of Flemish bond and has a water
table with a quarter round molded brick.

Almodington is preserved. The original dining room panelling

from this house is now in the Metropolitan Museum of Art in
New York.

5. PHYSICAL CONDITION OF STRUCTURE  Endangered inrerier EXCEllent Exterior Excellent

SUPPLEMENTAL INFORMATION AND PHOT _)RAPHS MAY BE ADDED ON SHEET OF SAME SIZE

2 black and white 5 by 7 prin
1 black and white contact and
tive

6;5 1 color slide
6. LOCATION MAP (Plan Optional) 7. PHOTOGRAPH
3. PUBLISHED SOURCES (Avthor, Title, Pages) 9. NAME, ADDRESS AND TITLE OF RECORDER

INTERVIEWS, RECORDS, PHOTOS, ETC. .
Paul A, Brinkman
Forman, Henry Chandlee, Early ° . X
Manor énd Plantation Houses of Maryland Historical Trust

Maryland, Privately Printed, 1934,
P. 153 (2 photo floor p1an) 1967

paTE oF Recorc February 8,
HABS - 3 photos
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Almodington S-40
Oriole vicinity,Somerset Co.,Md.
Northwest Cornmer with Cove Cornice
3/86, Paul Touart, Photographer
Neg./Md. Historical Trust






ALMODINGTON S-40
Oriole Vicinity,Somerset County

West Elevation
11/85, Paul Touart Photographer
Neg/Md. Historical Trust
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ALMODINGTON S-40
Oroile Vicinity, Somerset County
Outbuilding/South Elevation
11/85 Paul Touart, Photographer
Neg/M.D. Historical Trust






Almodington S-40
Oriole vicinity, Somerset Co., MD.
Glazed Brick Decoration, Back Door

4/86, Paul Touart, Photographer
Neg./MD. Hist. Trust
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Oriole Vicinty, Somerset County
Dining Room Paneling

11/85 Paul Touart, Photographer
Neg/ Md. Historical Trust






ALMODINGTON S-40
Oriole Vicinity, Somerset County
Dining Room Paneling

11/85 Paul Touart, Photographer
Neg/ M.D. Historical Trust
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Oriole Vicinity, Somerset County

Second floor railing

11/85, Paul Touart, Photographer

Neg/ Md. Historical Trust
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Oriole Vicinity, Somerset County
Second Floor Railing

11/85, Paul Touart, Photographer
Neg/Md. Historical Trust






ALMODINGTON S <c
Oriole Vicinity, Somerset County
Center Stair

11/85, Paul Touart, Photographer
Neg/ M.D. Historical Trust






ALMODINGTON §-40
Oriole Vicinity, Somerset County
North Bedroom

11/85 Paul Touart, Photographer
Neg/Md. Historical Trust



